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Agriculture; agricultural outbuilding
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Agriculture; agricultural outbuilding
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Architectural Classification
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Mid-19th Century

Materials
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foundation 
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stone
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roof slate

other
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individual distinction.

D D Property has yielded, or is likely to yield, 
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Criteria Considerations
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religious purposes.
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Property Owner
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The Perry/Petty farm a modest 19th-century farmstead located 
in the valley of the Pohatcong Creek at Karrsville in Mansfield 
Township, Warren County, New Jersey. Often swampy at Karrsville 
and greatly constricted by flanking hills, the Pohatcong valley 
forms part of the state's Highlands geographical province, an area 
of low parallel ridges separated by valleys of varied width. An 
assemblage of small frame buildings, the farmstead consists of a 
house dating to the mid-19th century, a somewhat later barn, and 
three 20th-century chicken coops. Fronting on Jackson Valley Road 
and delineated on its other sides by stone and hedge rows, the 
nearly level, 7-acre property encompasses sizeable yards around the 
house and barn, as well as a pasture on the south and a small 
western hay field. The barnyard is enclosed by wooden post and 
rail and snake rail fences, and a continuation of the latter sepa­ 
rates the pasture from the house yard. The farmstead is surrounded 
by a mix of fields and woods with expansive views of the mountains 
to the west. To the east and west along Jackson Valley Road are 
several 19th-century houses interspersed among modern dwellings.

House

The principal element of the complex is the house, a 1 and 
1/2-story, gable-roofed dwelling consisting of a main block and rear 
wing. Facing north with a short set back from the road, the 4-bay, 
single-pile main block was built in two sections and, based on phy­ 
sical and documentary evidence, can be dated to c. 1847-60. Of 
traditional construction and design, it has a two-room plan, inte­ 
rior west gable-end chimney, and simple detailing which exhibits 
few stylistic influences. While retaining much early fabric, the 
house was renovated in the early 20th century, and some features 
date to that period or more recent work (photo #s 1-11). Comple­ 
menting the main block in form and detailing, the 2-bay rear wing, 
constructed last year to replace a mid 20th-century shed-roofed 
appendage, has a one-room plan and gable-end chimney.

The exterior of the main block presents a mix of early and 
later finishes. Most of the siding appears to be original. The 
untapered clapboards are attached with machine cut nails typical of 
the mid-to-late 19th-century period, and a vertical seam in the 
front wall between the two central bays marks the junction of the 
two parts of the main block. The clapboard seam aligns with a step 
in the rubble stone foundation which reflects the slight change in 
floor level between the two sections (the east being approximately 
one foot higher than the west). The boxed overhanging eaves are of
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Italianate style derivation, and incorporate a simple bed molding 
but no crown molding. That their raking frieze boards overlap the 
gable siding suggests that they are an early modification. While 
the 6/3 sash upper story windows on the front and rear elevations 
appear to be early fabric, the 2/2 sashes on the first story are 
early 20th-century replacements, as is the glass-and-panel front 
door which occupies the west inner bay. Typical of many of the 
region's early dwellings, the main block had two front entries, the 
second located in the east inner bay, as evidenced by the seams in 
clapboards below the window which replaced it. The window and door 
trim is plain except for a quirk-bead molding around the inner 
edge. The 6/3 sash west gable window appears to be an early 20th- 
century installation (the profile of its muntins does not match the 
Grecian ovolo muntins of the other upper story windows), and a 
vertical seam in the clapboards below demarks the location of a 
removed window which itself appears to have been a latter installa­ 
tion. The slate roof with cast iron eagle snow guards, which most 
likely replaced wood shingles, is another early 20thcentury fea­ 
ture, and the brick chimney stack probably was rebuilt some years 
thereafter. The 3bay front porch, also dating to the early 1900s, 
is embellished in the Colonial Revival style with a molded box 
cornice and Tuscan columns; the concrete porch deck is a mid 20th- 
century replacement. Paint scrapping done while the house was 
recently undergoing repair indicated that the columns and other 
trim were painted a darker color than the siding, a contrast 
reflected in the present paint scheme (photo #s 1-3).

The main block is of traditional braced-frame, mortice and 
tenon construction, incorporating hewn timbers for the larger framing 
members and saw cut lumber with vertical saw marks for the studs, 
braces, and rafters. While the top hewn logs used for the first 
floor joists are typical of earlier construction, the nailed miter 
joint connecting the rafters at the roof peak is a framing detail 
not usually employed by local builders before the middle of the 
19th century. Another distinctive construction feature is the 
stone and mud mortar wall nogging, generally adopted by local 
builders in the second quarter of the 19th century in place of the 
split oak slat nogging used earlier. Packed between the studs 
after the siding was installed, the nogging fills all the exterior 
wall cavities except on the upper story of the west section and the 
east gable (photo #s 19 & 20). Typical of early traditional con­ 
struction, interior wall plaster is applied directly to the nogging 
without lath. Plaster lath was used only for ceilings and the 
walls without nogging. The west gable-end chimney is also of stone
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and mud mortar construction and while serving a substantial cooking 
fireplace lacks the exposed back typical of earlier frame houses of 
the region. The east section also had a chimney, located within 
the east gable wall. Removed in the early 1950s, its size indicates 
that it was designed to vent stoves.

While one might expect that the west half of the house pre­ 
dated the east half because of its cooking fireplace and lower 
floor level, there is physical evidence to suggest that the east 
section was built first and the western half constructed next, 
possibly with a lower roof which was subsequently raised to its 
present height. That the west gable of east section was once an 
exterior wall, for example, is established by the nail hole pattern 
of removed clapboards in the framing studs visible in the attic. 
Furthermore, the west section appears to lack a structural east 
wall; there are no east corner posts, and its south and north wall 
framing is joined to the corner posts of the east section (photo 
#20). The lack of nogging in the exterior upper story walls of the 
west section also suggests that the roof of the west section was 
raised, as does the use of circularly sawn plaster lath in this 
area in contrast to the hand-split lath of the west-room ceiling 
below (photo #23). Although mere conjecture, the lower floor level 
of the west section could be explained as surviving, perhaps along 
with the fireplace, from an earlier, possibly log, one-room dwell­ 
ing which was replaced with the present west section after the east 
section was constructed. Additional physical investigation, how­ 
ever, would be necessary to establish an exact construction chrono­ 
logy for the main block.

The frame of the east half of the house also features a modest 
piece of folk decoration uncovered during the recent construction 
of the rear wing. The compass-inscribed ornament scratched into 
the outer face of the south rafter plate consists of a six-lobe 
star within a circle about six inches in diameter (photo #19). It 
evidently was executed during the construction of the east half of 
the house (or during the installation of the overhanging eaves) and 
was not intended to be visible as surface decoration.

The interior of the house retains its original plan and con­ 
siderable early fabric, although some features have been lost or 
obscured by modern alterations. Each half of the main block has a 
full cellar and a single first story room. Access to the cellars 
is from hatch ways, both originally exterior although the east 
cellar hatch is now entered by a trap door in the floor of the new
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wing. An enclosed winder staircase to the north of the fireplace 
in the west first-story room provides access to the upper story. 
Upstairs, the east section also has one room from which a small 
passageway has been partitioned to create access to the upper story 
of the new wing. The west section originally had three rooms, a 
larger room to the north and two smaller chambers to the south, 
divided by plank partitions covered by lath and plaster on both 
sides. Sometime before the middle of the 20th century the north 
room was subdivided into a narrow bathroom along the north wall and 
hallway leading from the stairs to the east room. More recently, 
the plank partition between the two small chambers was removed. 
Photo #s 4-9.

The simple early finishes of the main block include random 
width, tongue and groove flooring, plaster walls and ceilings, 
simple door and window trim with a quirk-bead molding on the inner 
edge, plain baseboards, and batten doors hung on cast iron butt 
hinges and with cast iron lift latches of types popular in the 
mid-to-late 19th century. Among the more notable features of the 
house is the west-room fireplace, flanked to the south by a built- 
in cupboard and to the north by a closet and the winder stairs. 
The stone fireplace, which retains fragments of white and red- 
tinted washes on its rear wall, has a timber lintel and simple 
shelf. The cupboard has a batten lower door and 4-light upper 
door, the latter apparently a replacement of probably early 20th- 
century date. The reworking of the cupboard, no doubt was contem­ 
porary with the installation and subsequent removal of the gable- 
end window, whose sill level aligned with the stile between the 
cupboard's upper and lower doors. The staircase door has been 
removed, but survives. The original flooring of the west room was 
covered by narrow tongue and groove boards in the mid-20th century, 
around which time tongue and groove pine paneling was installed in 
the east first-story room. The original wall plaster and woodwork, 
however, remain intact behind the paneling. Some years thereafter, 
the ceiling plaster and east chimney were removed, and while the 
wall paneling and floor were patched the hand-hewn ceiling joists 
were left exposed. Photo #s 4-9.

Abutting the east end of the main block on its south side, the 
new wing has a slate roof, clapboard siding, flush eaves, multi- 
pane sash windows, and a shed-roofed porch along its west side, the 
gable-end chimney has an exposed stone chimney back with protruding 
bake oven (plastered brick on a stone base) and brick stack. There 
is a kitchen on the first story with half bath and mud room in a
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shed appendage which extends along the south wall of the main block 
and a bedroom upstairs. Both the kitchen and bedroom have fire­ 
places, the one in the kitchen with a timber lintel and the one 
above with a simple period mantel. The finishes which include 
tongue and groove pine floors, simple woodwork and batten doors 
harmonize with those of the main block. Photo #s 3, 10 & 11.

Beneath the south end of the new wing's porch is a well, 
presumably of 19th-century date and possibly contemporary with the 
house. The round well, approximately 40 inches in diameter and 12 
feet deep, is lined with rubble stone, and care was taken during 
the construction of the wing not to disturb it.

Outbuildings

1. Barn. Located about 150 feet west of the house, the small 
barn stands perpendicular to the road with a short set back. It is 
a frame, 2-bay, gable-roofed structure with open-sided shed appen­ 
dage on its south gable end, and can be dated to the later 19th 
century based on physical evidence. Exterior features include a 
stone foundation, slate roof with cast-iron eagle snow guards, 
overhanging eaves, vertical plank siding attached with modern ma­ 
chine cut nails, several small multi-pane sash windows, and several 
entries. On the west side are two wagon entries with batten 
sliding doors, the larger one to the north above which is a small 
batten loft door. The east elevation has two small batten-doored 
entries, one of which is a Dutch door, and both are hung on cross 
garnet hinges. Photo #s 12-14.

Resembling two thirds of an English barn, the interior is 
divided by a central truss into a northern wagon bay and a stable 
area with loft above to the south. The northern bay may have been 
open to the roof originally, as its loft floor appears to have been 
a subsequent installation. The barn is framed with circularly sawn 
timbers of moderate size, and while the larger members are con­ 
nected with pegged mortise and tenon joints modern machine cut 
nails, instead of pegs, were used to secure the mortise joints by 
which the long diagonal braces of the central truss are connected 
to horizontal and vertical members, an unusual feature which is 
suggestive of a later 19th-century construction date (photo #15). 
The rafters also are connected at the peak with a nailed miter 
joint (photo #16). The wooden cattle stanchion in the stable area 
are wire nailed and presumably of early 20th-century provenance.
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The poured concrete floor was installed in more recent years, and 
beneath its northeast corner is a stonewalled cistern, approxi­ 
mately 7 feet wide, 8 feet long, and 11 feet deep. The barn 
contributes to the farmstead's significance.

3. Chicken coops. The farmstead complex is completed by three 
frame chicken coops, which probably date c. 1930-50. Two adjoin the 
barn, and the third is located about two hundred feet south of the 
house. All three are long, low, shed-roofed buildings with poured 
concrete foundations, new standing steam metal roofs, novelty sid­ 
ing, multi-pane sash windows, and batten or panel doors. The 
frames are constructed of milled lumber of standard modern sizes 
and wire nails. Two garage bays with batten double doors have been 
installed in the coop between the house and barn, and the coop to 
the south of the house has been converted into a carpenter's shop. 
The coops are not contributing resources. Photo #s 12, 13 & 17.
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Picturesquely sited in the Pohatcong Valley, the Perry/Petty 
Farmstead is an important survivor from Mansfield Township's rural 
past and has significance under criteria A and C for agriculture 
and architecture. It exemplifies the region's smallest 19th-cen­ 
tury farmsteads, properties whose owners evidently engaged in agri­ 
culture on a limited basis as a supplement to another occupation. 
The well-preserved house and barn provide a document of the re­ 
gion's more modest rural architecture during the mid-to-late 19th 
century. In addition, the environs of the house and barn, along 
with the well and cistern, may have the potential to yield archaeo­ 
logical information about the region's material culture in that 
era.

The house and barn are simple vernacular buildings clearly 
rooted in the region's traditional construction practices and 
forms but also reflecting, to a limited degree consonant with both 
rural conservatism and the evidently modest needs and means of 
their builders, contemporary innovations in building technology and 
stylistic fashions. The house is a representative late example of 
the small, 1 and 1/2-story, traditional house type, known variously 
as the "British cabin" and "East Jersey cottage," which remained 
popular with people of modest means into the middle of the 19th 
century before disappearing from the local building vocabulary. 
While earlier examples in the area appear to have been widely 
distributed, later examples are generally associated with more 
marginal agricultural locations (Mansfield Township has perhaps a 
half dozen survivors, among which the Perry/Petty House is one of 
the best preserved). 1 The barn is evidently an uncommon {at least 
locally), two-thirds version of the "English" barn type, a variant 
suitable for small, part time farmers. Both the house and barn are 
constructed mostly with traditional mortice and tenon joinery, but 
incorporate the nailing of some smaller framing members, a practice 
which, although not unknown earlier, appears to have been generally 
adopted by local builders around the middle of the 19th century, 
perhaps encouraged by the wide availability of relatively inexpen­ 
sive, machine made nails by that time. The stone and mud mortar 
wall nogging with interior plaster finish is another traditional 
feature of the house, and the use of lath and plaster instead for 
the walls of the enlarged upper story (which evidently was an early 
alteration) also illustrates the changes occurring in local building 
practices during the middle decades of the 19th century. The 
influence of stylistic fashions on rural builders can be seen in the 
addition of the vaguely Italianate overhanging eaves to the house, 
as well as the later Colonial Revival porch. Also of note is the
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compass-inscribed folk ornament scratched into dwelling's south 
rafter plate and uncovered during recent renovations.

Ownership of the site of the Perry/Petty Farmstead can be 
traced back to the third quarter of the 18th century, when the 
portion of the Pohatcong valley stretching northeastward from 
roughly what is now Tunnel Hill Road to beyond Mitchell Road com­ 
prised a property of 1,675 acres called the "Timberswamp tract," 
Like many other large tracts of land in northwestern New Jersey at 
that time, the property was owned by a well-to-do nonresident and 
apparently settled by tenants (and no doubt occasionally by squat­ 
ters) who cleared and improved the land. The earliest known deed 
for the Timberswamp is the 1765 conveyance from John Fordham, a 
former Philadelphia resident, to Issac Andrews of Deptford Township 
in south Jersey's Gloucester County. In 1772 Andrews had the tract 
laid out into eleven lots and in his 1775 will (probated in 1776) 
directed his executors to sell the land according to the arrange­ 
ments that he had made in his lifetime. Some of the lots were 
acquired by local settlers and others were conveyed to nonresident 
investors. 2 Among Timberswamp's earliest residents were the Tay- 
lors, who settled and eventually acquired title to the land imme­ 
diately west of the Perry/Petty Farmstead where they built a grist 
mill and later a saw mill on the creek and farmed for several 
generations. Laid out in 1778, Jackson Valley Road has an oxbow 
bend which provided access to Taylor's Mill. Taylor's Mill was the 
neighborhood's earliest focal point and its place name until the 
middle of the 19th century when a post office was established with 
the name of Karrsville. 3

The land to the east of the Taylors' holdings comprised a 219 
acre "farm or plantation" (no doubt one of the eleven Timberswamp 
lots and designated as lot A on the accompanying map) which was 
acquired at a Sheriff's sale in 1788 by Moore Furman, a large 
landowner and successful businessman, who was one of Hunterdon 
County's most prominent citizens. Furman, who undoubtedly rented 
the property to tenants, devised it in his 1806 will to his daugh­ 
ter Anna Marie Hunt of Trenton. She in turn sold the property in 
March, 1813 to Mansfield Township resident, Benjamin Coleman, who 
quickly proceeded to subdivide and sell it. 4

An 8.36 acre portion of the tract (designated as lot B on the 
map and including the farmstead site) was purchased in April, 1813 
by Jonathan Petty for $100, a figure that suggests that no improve­ 
ments had as yet been made. 5 Jonathan Petty appears to have been a
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Mansfield Township farmer who used the property at Taylor's Mill as 
a wood lot. When he died in 1838 without leaving a will, John 
Petty, Jr. (presumably his son) was granted the administration of 
his estate. In the following year, the other heirs (presumably 
John's brothers and sisters) conveyed the property to John in a 
deed which described it as a "wood lot". 6

In 1841 John Petty, Jr. and his wife Elizabeth (who later on, 
if not at that time, lived on the south bank of the Pohatcong, just 
east of Taylor's mill pond) sold the smaller east half of his 
father's wood lot (lots B.I, B.2 and B.5) to William Ketcham of 
Lebanon Township, Hunterdon County for $84.96. This deed was not 
recorded until 1847 when Ketcham purchased an acre from the west 
half of the wood lot (lot B.3) from the Pettys for $25. 7 In the 
following year, Ketcham and his wife, by then Mansfield residents, 
conveyed the one acre (lot B.3) and the half acre northern corner 
of his 1841 purchase (lot B.I, which gave B.3 road frontage) to 
George Winters for $190. 8

The 1850 census provides the first evidence that an occupied 
dwelling was located on the property, by the order in which George 
Winters was enumerated as a head of household. Winters is listed 
as a 26-year-old canal boatman with a 20-year-old wife, Margaret, 
and a 2-year-old son, Benjamin. It seems likely that Winters, a 
Karrsville native who married in 1846 at the age of twenty-four, 
purchased the 1 and 1/2 acre lot from Ketcham in 1848 as a place to 
live, it being less than two miles from the Morris Canal at Port 
Murray. 9 While the sale price of $190 suggests that some improve­ 
ments had been made to the property before he purchased it, Winters 
may well have been responsible for constructing the house which his 
family occupied at the time of the 1850 census. There is no evi­ 
dence that Ketcham ever occupied the premises. Ketcham bought and 
sold considerable property in Mansfield Township during the middle 
of the 19th century, and the 1850 census of township residents de­ 
scribes him as an innkeeper. 10

In 1853 Winter and his wife sold the 1 and 1/2 acre property 
to William G. Perry for $250. The 1860 Walling map of Warren 
County depicts a house on the site with "W. Perry" as its owner. 
The U. S. Census of that year identifies Perry as a 29-year-old 
laborer with a 29-year-old wife, Frances, and three children rang­ 
ing in age from 5 months to 12 years. His real estate was valued 
at $600 and his personal property at $100. The first figure, 
representing more than twice what he had paid for the property,
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suggests that he had made considerable improvements, possibly en­ 
larging or replacing Winter's dwelling and/or erecting a barn or 
other outbuildings. 11

Perhaps because of such expenditures or for some other reason, 
Perry became financially insolvent and in 1861 lost the property at 
a court-ordered sheriff's sale. Daniel M. Wyckoff of Washington 
Township bought the house at the sheriff's auction for $1; in 1862 
his son and executor sold it for $100 to Ann E. Perry, the wife of 
John R. Perry. How they were related to William Perry is unknown. 
In December 1864, Ann Perry sold the property to James Jordan for 
$600 and before the end of the month Jordan conveyed its title to 
George W. Taylor for the same price. 12

George W. Taylor was the last male representative of his 
family to own and occupy the homestead property at Karrsville. 
Active in business and politics (he was a state Senator and a local 
bank director), he undoubtedly purchased the Perry house for use as 
rental property. 13 In 1870, it appears to have been occupied by 
Joseph Petty whom the census of that year identifies as a 22-year- 
old laborer with a 20-year-old wife Adaline. Joseph probably was 
the son of William Petty, who owned a farm located about a half 
mile to the east adjoining the Karrsville schoolhouse. How these 
Petty were related to Jonathan and John Petty is not known. 14

Two years after George Taylor's death in 1872, his heirs 
sold the Perry house and its 1 1/2 acre lot to Jacob Petty for 
$300. 15 Jacob Petty (possibly Jonathan's grandson and John's 
nephew) was a carpenter who lived in the first house to the east on 
the same side of the road which was torn down about ten years ago. 
He had acquired that 2-acre house lot (lot C) from William Ketcham 
in 1846 and purchased the adjoining 2.47 acre portion of Jonathan 
Petty's wood lot (lot B.2) in the following year from Ketcham for 
$85. In 1852 he purchased the 4.47-acre remainder of the west half 
of the wood lot (lot B.4) from John and Elizabeth Petty for 
$134.10, thus assembling an almost 9 acre property which he farmed 
in a small way to supplement his trade. 16 The censuses from 1850 
to 1880 indicate that he practiced his trade throughout that period 
and that he and his wife Margaret had at least seven children. 17

Their son George also became a carpenter and settled next door 
to his parents. In February, 1876 he bought the Perry house from 
his parents for $325 and in June of that year acquired a 7.67 acre 
parcel to the west {lot D) from Fenton Quigley. 18 He probably was
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married around that time and set-up housekeeping in the house with 
his wife Katherine. They had two sons, Elmer and Earl. 19 Like his 
father, George farmed his small property as well as practiced his 
trade. According to the Agricultural Schedule of the 1880 U. S. 
Census his farm (both land and improvements) was worth $800. It 
consisted of eight tilled acres including two acres of mowed grass­ 
lands (which produced 3 tons of hay in 1879) and one acre of oats 
(from which 10 bushels were harvested in 1879; the remaining 
acreage was unmown grasslands (lying fallow or used as pasture). 
His livestock, valued at $50, included 1 milk cow, 2 swine, and 11 
chickens. In 1879, the cow dropped a calf which was sold alive, 
and 200 pounds of butter were produced, as were 15 dozen eggs. The 
total value of all farm products for 1879 was $40. 18 Neither 
George nor his father Jacob, who farmed on a similar scale, owned 
horses at the time of the census. George apparently did his farm 
work without them (or perhaps hired a neighbor to plow his one acre 
of oats) and presumably walked to his various carpentry jobs, as 
his father's obituary noted that the elder Petty did. 20

Agriculture clearly was only a supplementary source of income 
for George Petty, as it was for many Mansfield artisans and other 
workers at that time. Of the 150 Mansfield farmers listed in the 
1880 agricultural census, about 19% were small operators with less 
than 25 acres, and the population schedule of the 1880 census indi 
cates that most of these individual had nonagricultural primary 
occupations. For example, William Petty, Jr., a neighbor and 
probably a relative of George and Jacob Petty, was a shoemaker who 
farmed 11 acres. 21

George Petty died in 1924 at age 75, from injuries suffered 
falling off a beam while helping to build a barn on farm several 
miles from home. 22 He bequeathed his farm to his wife for life and 
then to his two sons to be divided equally between them. The 
brothers sold the property in 1929 to Lester and Louise Wilson, who 
presumaby were responsible for the construction of the chicken 
coops. By mistake, that deed conveyed only the parcel bought by 
George Petty from Quigley and not the lot that he had acquired from 
his father Jacob, a defect that was not corrected until recently. 23

The property changed hands once in 1947, before it was ac­ 
quired by Lena Vanderveen in 1949. 24 In 1953, she also bought the 
4.47 acres (lot B.4) which Jacob Petty had purchased from John and 
Elizabeth Petty in 1852. Jacob Petty left his property to his 
daughter, Bertha Skinner, who sold it in 1908. Two years later it
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was acquired by George Brugman, from whom Lena Vanderveen purchased 
the 4.47 acres. Lena Vanderveen occupied and farmed the premises 
which she named "Valley Promise Farm" until her death in 1983, 
after which it was acquired by the present owners. 25
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Verbal Boundary Description

The nominated property encompasses Mansfield Township tax 
parcel block 703, lot 20A. It boundaries are those of that lot as 
the survey prepared by on Ronald Raffling and dated February 2, 
1985 (see accompanying plat).

Verbal Boundary Justification

Consisting of approximately 6.59 acres on the south side of 
Jackson Valley Road, the nominated property encompasses the lands 
historically associated with the Perry/Petty Farmstead, but ex­ 
cludes three lots subdivided from its west end in the 1950s and 
includes a portion of the property owned by George Petty's father 
Jacob added to its south side in 1953. The subdivided lots are 
owned by different parties, and a modern dwelling occupies the 
westernmost of the three but is screened by evergreen trees from 
the farmstead.
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Photographic Identification:

The following information is the same for all of the photo­ 
graphs submitted with the nomination:

Name: Perry/Petty Farmstead 
Location: 882 Jackson Valley Road

Mansfield Township, Warren County, NJ 
Photographer: Dennis Dillon
Date of photographs: Summer 1998 j +* #*••***. Sw^vHe«» l«Vt£ 
Negative repository: Dennis Dillon

882 Jackson Valley Road
Oxford, NJ 07863

Photograph direction of view:

#1 House, southeast view.
#2 " , southwest view.
#3 " , northeast view.
#4 " , west room, west view.
#5 " , west room, northeast view.
#6 " , east room, north view.
#7 " , east room, detail plaster/trim behind paneling, N view
#8 " , west bedroom, northeast view.
##9 " , east bedroom, northeast view.
#10 " , south wing, kitchen, southwest view.
#11 " , south wing, bedroom, southeast view.
#12 Barn and coops, northwest view.
#13 Barn and coop, northwest view.
#14 Barn, southeast view.
#15 " interior, bent detail, nailed mortice joints, SW view.
#16 Barn, interior, north gable, northwest view.
#17 South coop, northwest view.
#18 South pasture, northwest view towards farmstead.
#19 House, compass-inscribed decoration, south plate, $ view.
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